

bearing, which, together with the epicentral distance, gives 50° N., 150° E., for the co-ordinates of the epicentre. This determination is marked by a cross on the diagram. The agreement with the result obtained by using data for the seven stations is as good as could be wished.

The earthquake occurred in a region where such occurrences are frequent. There were considerable earthquakes there on Feb. 16 and Dec. 28, 1927.

University and Educational Intelligence.

BIRMINGHAM.—Mr. R. G. MacGregor has been appointed lecturer in physiology.

The University Appointments Board has issued its fourth annual report. The report shows a marked increase in the number of new graduates registered, and in the number for whom employment has been found. The demand for men and women with a university training appears to be definitely on the increase, particularly in commerce and industry. It is noted that, of a total of 45 vacancies notified for civil engineers, 44 were for posts abroad. A significant fact is that, of the 64 registered graduates who are unemployed, 50 are seeking appointments in the teaching profession.

CAMBRIDGE.—The official letter conveying the offer of the International Education Board of £700,000 on condition that within a few years the University finds a further £229,000, in addition to the £250,000 already secured for the new Library, has now been received and published. It deals most generously and helpfully with many minor points in connexion with the University, but there is a stipulation that no legacies shall be contributed towards the supplementary sum to be provided by the University, a stipulation not without interest to the University at the moment.

Three further benefactions are announced. A very valuable collection of medical, engineering, electrical, and optical apparatus, bequeathed to the University by the late Sir David Goldsmid-Stern-Salomons, Gonville and Caius College, subject to the life interest of his widow, has now been offered by Lady Salomons to the University. The late Dr. J. W. L. Glaisher, Trinity College, has bequeathed his mathematical books to the University Library, and his collection of china and pottery and other works of art to the Fitzwilliam Museum, with a sum of £10,000 to be applied in making provision for the care, preservation, and exhibition of the collection. Messrs. Bernard, Reginald, and Kenneth Pretty have offered to the University, at the wish of the late Miss Gwyneth Pretty, Girton College, her residuary estate of the approximate value of £5000 for the furtherance of research for the prevention of disease. The diseases in which the testatrix was most interested were those that cripple or disable in childhood.

Dr. R. A. McCance, Sidney Sussex College, has been appointed to the Pinsent-Darwin Studentship in mental pathology.

THE Ella Sachs Plotz Foundation is at present assisting research on problems in medicine or surgery, especially group researches on a single problem; for example, for the past five years the general subject of nephritis, and to a lesser extent internal secretion and infection, have been given special consideration. Twenty-one grants were made during 1928, of which thirteen were to workers outside the United States. Applications for grants to be held during 1929-30 must reach the secretary of the executive committee, Dr. Joseph C. Aub, Huntington Memorial Hospital, 695 Huntington Avenue, Boston, Mass., before May 15.

Calendar of Patent Records.

January 27, 1778.—One of the many improvements in the water-closet was due to Joseph Bramah, who was granted a patent for his 'valve' closet on Jan. 27, 1778. Bramah's was not only the pioneer in this type of closet, but it also remained superior in its action to all the many inventions in the same class that followed it. The modern water-closet was first described by Sir John Harington in his "Metamorphosis of Ajax," published in 1596, many years before it came into general use.

January 28, 1589.—The saltpetre monopolies of Elizabeth and James I. are notorious from the fact that it was partly the abuse of their privileges by the saltpetre men appointed by the various patentees that led to the popular agitation against monopolies and ultimately to the Statute of Monopolies of 1623, but there was at the time a clear case for the establishment of a national source of supply for the manufacture of gunpowder. One of these patents was that granted to George Evelyn, Richard Hills, and John Evelyn on Jan. 28, 1589. Certain districts, notably London, being already covered by other grants, were excluded from its operation, but in 1591 a new grant was issued to the Evelyns that gave them a virtual monopoly. George Evelyn was the grandfather, and John Evelyn the uncle, of the diarist.

January 28, 1724.—The faking of expensive materials is not peculiar to the present day. On Jan. 28, 1724, a patent was granted to Robert Redrich and Thomas Jones "as well for staining, veining, spotting, clouding, damasking, and otherwise imitating the various kinds of marble, porphyry, and other rich stones and tortoiseshell, on wood, stone, and earthenware and all and every such goods, wares, utensils, and things, as are cut, made, or fashioned thereout."

January 28, 1832.—Steel pen nibs were known early in the last century, but they were not extensively used until James Perry, who had been making them from 1819 onwards, introduced the use of cross slits and apertures between the shoulder and the point. This construction he patented on Jan. 28, 1832. The firm of Perry and Co. was founded in 1829.

January 30, 1808.—The first band-saw was patented in England by William Newberry on Jan. 30, 1808, but it was thirty years and more before it came into practical use, and it was in France where it was fully developed. The two French patents of Mille-Crespin (1846) and M. Perin (1853) may be regarded as the foundation of the modern band-saw.

February 1, 1800.—One of the earliest patents for a screw propeller for ships was that granted to Edward Shorter on Feb. 1, 1800, for what he called a 'perpetual sculling-machine,' probably intended to enable large vessels to be manœuvred in a calm. Two or more blades similar to the sails of a windmill were mounted on a spar proceeding from any convenient part of the stern of the vessel obliquely downwards until its end dipped into the water, a buoy being provided to prevent it dipping too far. The spar was connected by a Hooke universal joint to a horizontal shaft, to which motion could be given by the capstan worked by man power or by a steam engine. By moving the spar transversely the ship could be steered. The invention is said to have been successfully tried on H.M. Ships *Dragon* and *Superb*.

February 3, 1818.—The patent for Jeremiah Chubb's original 'detector' lever lock is dated Feb. 3, 1818. The special feature of this lock was the use of a 'detector' device which came into action immediately if a wrong key with too long a bit were used in an attempt to open the lock, and effectively blocked the bolt until re-set by its proper key.